UNITED

NATIONS C R C

Convention on the S ERAL
Rights of the Child

CRC/ C/ SR. 347
4 March 1997

ENGLI SH
Original: FRENCH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Fourteent h session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 347t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 8 January 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai rperson: Ms. BELEMBAOCGO

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (conti nued)

Initial report of Bulgaria (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of the Conmittee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly
after the end of the session.

GE. 97- 15022 (E)



CRC/ C/ SR. 347
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.10 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (agenda item 4) (continued)

Initial report of Bulgaria (continued) (CRC/ C 8/ Add.29; CRC/ C/ @ BUL. 1)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the del egation of Bulgaria resuned

its place at the Conmittee table.

2. M. STEFANOV (Bul garia) said that, the previous day, Ms. Santos Pais
had asked about the treatnent of children by Bul garian | aw enforcenent
officials, a recent cause for concern to certain non-governnent al

organi zations. In ternms of prevention, training progranmes run in all police
schools in Bulgaria included talks on the Constitution, the Universa

Decl aration of Human Rights and the main international human rights
instruments, particularly the International Covenant on Civil and Politica
Ri ghts and henceforth on the Convention on the Rights of the Child. The
progranmmes al so included courses on general behaviour and psychol ogy. 1In
addition, articles 40 and 41 of the National Police Act defined when police
officials could use force. The Mnistry of the Interior had also i ssued
regul ati ons and instructions on the inplenmentation of those articles and the
treatment of persons in custody in police stations. The Mnistry of the
Interior also ran other training programmes with financial and technica

assi stance fromthe Enbassies of the United States of America and the

United Kingdom and fromthe International Conmittee of the Red Cross (I CRC)

3. Wth regard to repression, victins of abuse, their famlies and NGOs
coul d appeal to the Conpl aints and Comruni cati ons Unit of the Directorate of
the National Police which |ooked into all allegations and, when necessary,
sent themto the MIlitary Prosecutor. Victinms could also appeal directly to
the MIlitary Prosecutor, who ordered an investigation and, where necessary,
could take the case to court. During the investigation, the alleged culprits
were suspended fromtheir duties. |In 1996, several court rulings had been
handed down agai nst | aw enforcenent officials who had committed human rights
violations including 2 prison terms of 20 years and 1 of 18 years.

Di sci plinary neasures were taken in the case of |ess serious abuses which were
not considered crines under the Penal Code. It had already been nenti oned
that, in 1996, there had been 75 cases of disciplinary action including

di sm ssal s.

4. M. KOLAROV (Bulgaria), referring to the question of children who had
been put in State institutions, said that the Bulgarian authorities were aware
that the systemwas not ideal for various reasons, and that was why the draft
child protection act provided for placenment in a fanmily environnment. However,
as that was not a traditional course of action in Bulgaria, it was difficult
to make any further conmment for the tine being.

5. Several remarks al so needed to be nade on the concept of the best
interests of the child which Ms. Karp had nmentioned. It was true that

Bul gari an | egi sl ation needed to be updated, but there was already provision in
the Fam |y Code for the child to be able to express his opinion on issues
directly affecting him especially in the courts. Judges who had to make

deci sions on children turned to psychol ogi sts or teachers for advice. The



CRC/ C/ SR. 347
page 3

draft child protection act went even further in that it provided for guardi ans
ad litem who were responsible for giving the courts a better understandi ng of

the specific situation of the child and hel ping the child express his opinion

Bul garia was taking an active part in the drafting of a European convention on
the rights of the child.

6. Marriage was permitted at the age of 18 years or, exceptionally,

16 years with the consent of the judge for children. For the Roma comrunity,
in which, unfortunately, the tradition of de facto early marri age conti nued,
specific activities, such as sex education and information on contraception
and fam ly planning, were carried out in cooperation with representatives of
t he Roma comunity.

7. The draft child protection act provided for police protection in sone
speci fic cases, as an energency, on a tenporary basis and provi ded that the
best interests of the child required that he be taken away fromhis famly

i medi ately. The Prosecutor and social services were inmediately inforned of
the action taken so that the child could be put into care as necessary. There
was nmore of a lack of financial resources than of qualified staff.

8. Wth regard to M. Kol osov's conments and questions, those relating to
the recognition of specific rights for children gave rise to a delicate
conceptual problem Bulgarian |egislation was based on the principle of the
protection of fundamental rights as such and not the rights of specific
groups. Although the question of legislation particularly focusing on
children had been raised on various occasions, including when Bulgaria had
ratified the Convention, the legislator had preferred to draft a bill on the
protection of children which did not provide for any additional rights, but
establ i shed the mechani sns and procedures needed to ensure that existing
rights were respected. Bulgaria also intended to accede to the 1993 Hague
Convention on the Protection of Children and Cooperation in Respect of
Intercountry Adoption when the necessary anmendnments had been nade to

| egislation on the fanmily and when a national body had been established, as
requi red by the Convention in question

9. It did seem sensible, as M. Kol osov had suggested, specifically to
forbid corporal punishnent in the famly but it should be pointed out that
such puni shment was al ready prohibited in general by the Penal Code and the
Public Education Act. In 1996, a court had awarded conmpensation to a pupi
who had been struck by a teacher and the teacher had been dismissed. |In any
case, there was no tradition of corporal punishment in Bulgarian society.
Wth regard to problens which could arise in that regard in boardi ng school s,
it was out of the question for an NGO to be nmade responsible for dealing with
them Under the draft child protection act, that was the responsibility of
the social services. M. Kolosov's |ast question on whether young persons
under 18 years of age could receive nedical treatnment w thout the consent of
their parents was a particularly delicate issue, but, for the tine being, it
was nerely a theoretical hypothesis. It was feasible, however, that the
Constitutional Court or a district court would authorize treatnent on the
basis of the provisions of the Convention

10. Referring to the conments by Ms. Eufem o, he explained that the
question of the nedia and the freedom of expression of children was not



CRC/ T/ SR. 347
page 4

specifically regulated by | aw precisely in order to avoid restricting such
freedom In practice, all problens facing children were widely covered in the
medi a and there were specialized publications in which children could freely
express their opinions. The authorities also organi zed press conferences to
draw attention to children's specific needs and problens. Pornography was
treated as a crinme under article 159 of the Penal Code and, in 1993, an
anmendnent had provided for stiffer penalties, although the article was
unfortunately still breached regularly. The local authorities neverthel ess
tried to prohibit the distribution of pornographic material, with the

encour agenent of the popul ation

11. Wth regard to new religious novenments, the authorities tried to find a
bal ance between freedom of religion and the right of parents to bring up their
children according to their beliefs, on the one hand, and the genera
hostility the popul ation felt towards the novenents in question, on the other
Various information canpai gns had been undertaken, including in cooperation
with the Council of Europe. The introduction of freely chosen religious
education in school curricula was al so being consi dered.

12. The principle of the equality of parents had been introduced in

Bul gari an | aw sone 50 years previously. Were the father was known, he had
the sane rights as the nother. Wen there were probl enms about which parent
had authority, a court decision could be sought. Article 142 of the Pena
Code nade it a crine to abduct children. However, Bulgaria was not party to
t he Convention on the Civil Aspects of International Child Abducti on because
i sol ated cases were usually settled on a bilateral basis.

13. Ms. KARP said that she was not quite clear why Bulgaria would prefer

if necessary, to turn to the Constitutional Court for authorization for

nmedi cal treatnent to be given to children without their parents' consent, for
exanple, in the case of drug problens, contraception, abortion, and so forth,
rather than sinply anmending its legislation. She also asked whether police
officers were given training to help themdeal nore effectively with child
victinms of sexual abuse perpetrated by sonmeone in the family. Wiy were there
no | egal provisions ensuring harsher penalties for sexual abuse committed by a
fam |y menmber and what was being done to nake the public and the authorities
aware of such abuse and to help the victins?

14. She al so had the inpression that parental consent was required before a
child could be taken away from his hone, either because of antisocia

behavi our or because of an unsuitable environment. There was no nention of
the child s consent, however. Also, why, in the new |egislation on the
prevention of child abuse, was the judge not required to give the child a
hearing. In the light of the information in the report on problens in
establishnments where children were sonetinmes placed, the rel evant deci sions
shoul d be subject to extrenely strict conditions.

15. Ms. SANTOS PAIS said that she wel coned the intention of the Governnent
of Bulgaria to table a bill prohibiting the corporal punishment of children
She asked whether minors had the right to consult a doctor wi thout their
parents' consent, including in the case of fanm |y planning, given the |arge
nunber of pregnancies anong young girls and children born outside wedl ock.
She al so asked what neasures were being taken to prevent the ill-treatnment of




CRC/ C/ SR. 347
page 5

Roma children at the hands of the police, who tended to regard those children
as second-class citizens. |In that connection, human rights training for
police officers, particularly those in positions of responsibility, was
essential. Furthernore, conplaints of human rights violations conmtted by
police officers or menbers of the army should be investigated by civilian
courts, not by the Mlitary Prosecutor. It would be interesting to know

whet her children placed in specialized establishments were taken fromtheir
famlies only as a last resort and whether their living conditions were
nonitored on a regular basis. On the question of the adoption of Bulgarian
children by foreigners, she asked what criteria, other than material or
financial criteria, were taken into account when selecting adoptive famlies
and whet her anyone was responsi ble for nonitoring the situation of adopted
children abroad. |In cases of adoption in Bulgaria itself, was a child all owed
to give his opinion and could a child adopted by a fam|ly be sent back to a
speci al i zed establishnment if the famly so requested?

16. M ss MASON asked how the parliamentary National Conm ssion on the Famly
was related to the Committee for Young People and Children, what services were
available to children and wi ves who had suffered donestic viol ence and whet her
a network of host fam lies had been set up to limt the nunmber of children

pl aced in specialized establishments.

17. She al so asked for clarification on the agreenents that the Mnistry of
Health and the Mnistry of Education, Science and Technol ogi es had entered
into, respectively, with SOS Ki nderdorf International and SOS Children's
Settlenments Society (see para. 132 of the report). It would also be useful to
have informati on on why so many young persons conmitted suicide and how many
chil dren had Al DS

18. Ms. KARP said that it would be better to provide financial assistance
for famlies that could not support a child than to place the child in a
speci al i zed establishnment. She also asked whether the children placed in

t hose establishments coul d conplain about living conditions w thout fear of
reprisal

19. Ms. EUFEM O asked whether efforts were being nade to ensure that such
establishnents were as close to a fanm |y environnment as possible, what
proportion of children placed in such establishnments returned to live with
their famly and what neasures were taken to enable fanm lies to take them back
in the best possible conditions.

20. Wth regard to violence against children, it would be useful to know
whet her neasures other than crim nal |aw neasures were being taken to di ssuade
parents from using violence. The delegation of Bulgaria could also clarify

t he obstacles facing the Government in inplementing the national strategy to
combat poor child nutrition. Lastly, given the high rate of divorce and
single-parent fanmlies, it would be useful to know whether measures were being
taken to prepare teenagers for their future role as parents.

The neeting was suspended at 11.15 a.m and resuned at 11.25 a. m




CRC/ C/ SR. 347
page 6

21. Ms. BQIKOVA (Bul garia) said that when parents asked the Mnistry of
Education to place their children in a specialized establishment, they had to
justify the request. In those conditions, it was difficult to ask a child
whet her he was in agreenent and, if not, to keep the child in the famly

agai nst the parents' wll.

22. M. KOLAROV (Bulgaria) said that a child could see a doctor, free of
charge, w thout his parents' consent except when an operation was needed. Law
enforcenent officials were given specialized training in human rights. There
were al so special police units which, with the help of psychol ogists, dealt

wi th abused children or drug addicts. The placenent of children in
speci al i zed establishnments was a neasure that the authorities used only as a
| ast resort because they recognized that the famly was the best environment
for the devel opnent of the child. The Governnent was trying to provide socia
security to poor famlies and under the draft child protection act, such

assi stance was being strengthened, inter alia, with regard to health and
housing. A child who was likely to be placed in a boardi ng school because of
anti soci al behaviour had to express his opinion before such a nmeasure was
taken. However, that was not the case for children the famly affairs courts
decided to place in specialized establishments, particularly when the parents
had been deprived of their parental authority.

23. M. STEFANOV (Bul garia) confirnmed that the sexual abuse of a child by
his or her parents was not explicitly characterized as a crine under crimna
law. The best way to conbat that practice was to inpress upon parents that
they were seriously harmng their children. Police officers studied such

i ssues during their training, including froma psychol ogi cal point of view

24. The authorities were trying to raise police officers' awareness of the
ri sk of discrimnation against the Roma popul ation and the fact that any

di scrimnatory act would receive nassive nedia coverage. The Mlitary
Prosecutor and his services cane under the judiciary, not the executive.

25. M. KOLAROV (Bul garia) pointed out that, under the draft child
protection act, the situation of children in boarding schools would be
monitored regularly. The services in charge of the foreign adoption of

Bul gari an children provided many guarantees of the child' s future protection.
A departnment of the Mnistry of Justice would be responsible for the
procedures for Bulgaria's accession to the Hague Convention on the Protection
of Children and Cooperation in Respect of Intercountry Adoption

26. Ms. BQIKOVA (Bulgaria), replying to Mss Mason's questions, said that a
special unit in a large hospital in Sofia was analysing the root causes of the
cases of child suicide in the country. She had no statistics to hand at the
time on the nunber of children with AIDS, but it was not a particularly
serious problemin Bulgaria. School children were well informed about
preventive neasures and, in cooperation with the Wrld Health Organization
(WHO), the Mnistry of Health had drawn up an anti-AlIDS programme. Wth
regard to malnutrition and neasures to overcone it, she pointed out that

assi stance provided by the United Nations Children's Fund (UNI CEF) was
channel | ed through a national hunmanitarian aid agency whose director was

el ected by parliament and that the bulk of that assistance went to State

i nstitutions.




CRC/ C/ SR. 347
page 7

27. M. KO.OSOV. drawing attention to the inportance of a child's right to
education (art. 28 of the Convention), said he regretted the fact that the
attendance rate in the country's primary school s was dropping sharply. Were
any nmeasures planned to check the negative trend?

28. Ms. KARP asked whet her the Governnent of Bulgaria had carried out a
qualitative study on school curricula which mght shed |ight on why there was
a high drop-out rate. She also asked to what extent children were involved in
t he process of dissem nating information on their rights, whether they were

i nvol ved in disciplinary procedures in educational establishnents, whether
television and the nedia in general were used to teach children tol erance and
whet her sex education was a conpul sory feature of school curricula. She also
asked about |egal protection for children with antisocial behaviour who had
commtted crinmes and were put in the care of the institutions nmentioned in
par agraph 241 of the report. Lastly, what measures did the Bul garian
authorities intend to adopt to prevent the increase in prostitution in the
country?

29. Ms. SANTOS PAI S al so enphasi zed the need to anmend school curricula to
ensure that schools were indeed places that pronoted tol erance and respect for
others. In particular, the Bulgarian authorities should turn their attention
to the problem of the high school drop-out rate anong Roma children. The

adm nistration of justice for minors was also in need of radical reformto
bring in new | egislation, a new judicial systemand staff who had been trained
fromthe viewpoint of the principles of the Convention.

30. Wth regard to the need to guarantee children's rights when they were
arrested or detained, she was surprised that the guardian ad litem could be
repl aced by a menber of a local comrttee who was not necessarily a neutra
party. Was there a reliable procedure whereby the judicial authorities could
review a custodial sentence handed down by a |l ocal comittee?

31. Ms. EUFEM O asked whether the grow ng problemof the privatization of
educational establishments might not lead to financial discrimnation against
children from poorer famlies. As the delegation of Bulgaria had al so pointed
out that private schools attracted particularly well-qualified teachers, she
asked whet her State schools also recruited well-qualified staff. She urged
the Mnistry of Education, Science and Technol ogies to take account of all the
principles enbodied in article 29 of the Convention when it revised schoo
curricul a.

The neeting was suspended at 12.05 p.m and resuned at 12.15 p. m

32. Ms. BQIKOVA (Bulgaria) pointed out that the Mnistry of Education

Sci ence and Technol ogi es had drawn up a programme desi gned to guarantee
regul ar school attendance rates and reduce the number of children dropping out
of school. Projects had also been set up in cooperation with the

United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cul tural Organization (UNESCO and
took account of the traditions and |lifestyle of popul ations of foreign
extraction. 1In 1994, in an effort to increase the school attendance rate
anong Roma children, the Mnistry of Education, Science and Technol ogi es had
organi zed preparatory classes for them and published books in the Roma

di al ect, but the problem of teacher training remined.




CRC/ C/ SR. 347
page 8

33. Wth regard to children's participation in disciplinary procedures in
educational establishments, she said that pupils' representatives were present
in disciplinary councils, as was the child concerned, on occasion. Severa
tel evi si on programmes were al so devoted to pronoting human rights and

tol erance anmong children and their parents and the Convention had been
featured in a docunentary. Sex education was now conpul sory in schools.

34. As to conplaint procedures in the event of ill treatnent in a boarding
school , new provisions had been introduced to ensure that all such
establ i shments had house rules and informed children of what they were.

35. Many non-gover nnental organi zati ons (NGOs) were trying to deal with the
probl em of prostitution. At the governmental |evel, there was no specific
programme in that area, but individual nmeasures had been taken in connection
wi th general programres. School curricula were identical in both State and
private schools. Only material conditions were better in private schools.
There were cases of teachers who taught in both kinds of establishnent.

36. The CHAI RPERSON invited the nenbers of the Committee to conmment on the
replies by the del egation of Bulgari a.

37. Ms. SANTOS PAIS thanked the del egation of Bulgaria for its positive
attitude, which should help the Governnent of Bulgaria better to identify
where the systemfor protecting and pronoting the rights of the child fel
short. She hoped that |egislation would be anended as qui ckly as possible
and that the provisions of the Convention would be taken into account.

I ndependent coordi nation and foll ow up machi nery shoul d hel p assess progress
in inmplenenting the Convention and a systemfor collecting data on

children could al so operate in cooperation with UNICEF. On the basis of the
two fundamental principles of the Convention (the best interests of the child
and non-di scrimnation), Bulgaria could introduce a systemto assess the

i npact of socio-econonic policies on children. There should al so be progress
in the areas of information, training and education. The initial report and
the Committee's conclusions should al so be wi dely dissenm nated and brought to
the attention of the future Governnent. More sustained attention should be
paid to the ill-treatnment of children within and outside the famly. The
trai ning of professionals needed to be inproved to give the popul ation
confidence in the systemfor protecting children and every neasure taken
shoul d pronote the harnoni ous devel opnent of the child in the spirit of
articles 3 to 25 of the Convention. A national |egal framework should al so be
established to deal with both national and international adoptions. Wth
regard to justice for mnors, she hoped that the child protection act would
respect the provisions of articles 37, 39 and 40 of the Convention and that,
in particular, the right to legal aid would be recognized for children, in
accordance with article 37 (d) of the Convention. Lastly, she recomended

i ncreased cooperation between Bul garian institutions and the Centre for Human
Ri ghts in Geneva and the Crinme Prevention and Crimnal Justice Branch in
Vienna. |In conclusion, she expressed the hope that the prohibition of child
| abour woul d be clearly set out in Bulgarian |egislation




CRC/ C/ SR. 347
page 9

38. Ms. KARP recommended a holistic and integrated study of the

i npl ementati on of the Convention to hel p ensure cooperation between the
various mnistries and non-governnmental organizations (NG3s). The popul ation
shoul d be made nore aware of the general principles of the Convention in order
to educate parents and teachers fromthe point of view of dialogue with
chi | dren.

39. M ss MASON sai d she thought that the nenbers of the Commttee were aware
that the problens Bulgaria faced as a result of its transition to denocracy
wer e conmpounded by the world recession. Nevertheless, she regretted that

Bul garia, |ike many other countries, did not thus give priority to children.

A nore resolute comm tnent to children was needed, particularly by
strengthening the conposition and functions of the Conmittee on Youth and
Children. The public also needed to be nade nore aware of the problem of the
sexual exploitation of children. Additional information on children placed in
famlies and institutions, and on the question of national and internationa
adoption, would be useful. Furthernore, the phenomenon of donestic viol ence
shoul d be | ooked at in greater detail. She hoped that, in five years' tine,
the del egati on of Bulgaria would provide the Conmittee with information that
went beyond nerely recogni zi ng existing probl ens.

40. Ms. EUFEM O said that she wanted to nmake four recommendations to the
del egation of Bulgaria. 1In the first place, the Comrittee' s suggestions could
be taken into consideration when a national plan of action was drafted as the
basis for measures taken to help children in Bulgaria. Secondly, studies
shoul d be carried out which would help assess how far the country had
progressed in inplenenting children's rights (article by article of the
Convention). Thirdly, curricula for Bulgarian schools should be drawn up in
accordance with the objectives set out in article 29 of the Convention. Wth
regard to neans of conmunication and expression, particularly in respect of
preschool children, the value of songs, painting and various kinds of crafts
shoul d not be overl ooked.

41. M. KOOSOV said that he shared Ms. Santos Pais' concerns about justice
for mnors. Reformwas needed in that area, bearing in mnd, inter alia, the
United Nations Rules for the Protection of Juveniles Deprived of their Liberty
and the United Nations Cuidelines for the Prevention of Juvenile Delinquency
(the Riyadh Guidelines). He regretted the worsening situation of children in
Bul gari a and hoped that the programres drawn up woul d be successfully

i npl enented. He suggested to the del egation of Bulgaria that the dial ogue
with the Committee should be reported to the highest authorities in the
country. It would be a good idea for a public debate or a round table to be
held with the participation of the delegation of Bulgaria on the initia

report of Bulgaria and the Conmmittee's recommendati ons to increase public

awar eness of the problenms facing children and pronmote better understandi ng of
the principles of the Convention. A parlianentary debate on that subject
woul d al so be useful



CRC/ C/ SR. 347
page 10

42. Ms. BQIKOVA (Bulgaria) thanked the nenbers of the Committee for their

useful comrents and the constructive dial ogue they had entered into with her

country's del egation. She assured the nmenbers of the Cormittee that it would
pass on the Committee's suggestions and reconmendations to the top Bul garian

authorities.

43. The CHAI RPERSON said that the Commttee had conpleted its consideration
of the initial report of Bulgaria. She welcomed the fruitful dialogue that
had been established with the del egati on of Bulgaria and recalled that the
del egation had promised to transnit the Conmittee's suggestions to the

Gover nment of Bul gari a.

The neeting rose at 1 p.m




